
 

 

Agenda - Equality and Social Justice Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 5  

Meeting date: 21 November 2022 

Meeting time: 13.30

For further information contact: 

Rhys Morgan 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEquality@senedd.wales
------ 

Pre-meeting registration (13:00-13:30)  

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions 

(13:30)   

2 Experiences in the Criminal Justice System 

(13:30-14:30) (Pages 1 - 12)  

Tom Franklin – Magistrate’s Association  

3 Motion under SO17.42 (vi) and (ix) to exclude the public from 

items 4,7,8 and 9 of today's meeting and for the duration of the 

meeting on 28 November 2022 

   

4 Experiences in the Criminal Justice System - consideration of the 

evidence 

(14:30 -14:45)   

BREAK (14.45-15.00)  

 

5 Pre-appointment hearing with Future Generations Commissioner 

for Wales 

(15:00-16:00) (Pages 13 - 27)  

 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

Note: In accordance with Standing Order 17.49, Public Accounts and Public 

Administration Committee members may attend this meeting for this item 

 

Derek Walker, Welsh Government's preferred candidate for the role of Future 

Generations Commissioner for Wales 

6 Papers to note 

(16:00)   

6.1 Letter from the Women’s Equality Network (Wales) to the Chair regarding the 

cost of living crisis on Women's rights 

 (Pages 28 - 29)  

6.2 Letter  from the First Minister to the Chair regarding the Inter-Institutional 

Relations Agreement 

 (Page 30)  

6.3 Correspondence between the Chair and the  Chair of the Public Accounts and 

Administration regarding the Pre-appointment hearing of the Future 

Generations Commissioner 

 (Pages 31 - 33)  

6.4 A letter from the Finance Committee to the First Minister regarding Scrutiny 

of the financial implications of Bills 

 (Pages 34 - 36)  

7 Pre-appointment hearing: consideration of evidence  and agreeing 

a draft report 

(16:00-16:30)   

8 Forward work programme 

(16:30-16:40) (Pages 37 - 46)  

9 EUSS monitoring report: update 

(16:40-16:50) (Pages 47 - 57)  



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 13

Agenda Item 5By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



1 
 

Recruitment of Future Generations Commissioner 
 
Vacancy summary: 
 
We have a law in Wales that helps us all work together to improve our environment, 
our economy, our society, and our culture. For people, for our planet. For now, and for 
our future. This is called the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (WFG 
Act).  
 
The next Future Generations Commissioner for Wales will provide the necessary 
leadership to guide and enable sustainable development in Wales over the period 
2023-2030.  
 
The WFG Act continues to frame and shape how policy and services are delivered in 
Wales, and with new bodies being added to the WFG Act, and long-term milestones 
being set by the Welsh Government there is a renewed opportunity to engage and 
inspire the Welsh public service and other sectors so that Wales develops in a 
sustainable way and delivers for people and planet. 
 
The Commissioner is appointed for a period of 7 years. The post will attract a salary 
of circa £95,000.  The salary is subject to tax and national insurance and is 
pensionable 
 
Background: 
 
Through the WFG Act, Wales has set out seven ambitious well-being goals which 
establish a long-term vision for a sustainable Wales and describes sustainable 
development as the way in which these goals will be achieved. This is about meeting 
the needs of current generations without compromising the ability of future generations 
to meet their own needs. The Welsh Government is committed to leading Wales in 
achieving these well-being goals and changing the way Wales works so  sustainable 
development is the core principle guiding our actions to improve the well-being of 
people now and in the future. To assist, support, and inspire this transformation, an 
independent Future Generations Commissioner for Wales (‘the Commissioner’) was 
established to provide advice and support on sustainable development and be an 
advocate for future generations. 
 
 
Publicity summary: 
 
The Welsh Government circulated details of the appointment through stakeholder 
lists held by the Public Bodies Unit (PBU) and posted the vacancy on the Welsh 
Government public appointments website and the UK Cabinet Office website.  
 
The vacancy was promoted by the following Social Media channels and advertised 
through the media listed below: 
 
Publications/recruitment websites  

• Guardian Jobs; 
• Fish4Jobs; 

Pack Page 19

https://gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales


2 
 

• The online platform for The Western Mail and Daily Post; 
• Diversity Jobsite Network; 
• Golwg; 
• Y Cymro Banner; 
• Indeed. 

Sector specific  
• Green Jobs;  
• Sustainability Job; - Sustainability Job | Advertise with us 
• SDG.careers; Find social impact jobs around the Sustainable Development 

Goals - SDG.careers  
• Environment Jobs. Environmental jobs | Environmentjob.co.uk  

Targeted Advertisement  
• With equality and diversity organisations; 
• Through the Future Generations Commissioner Office newsletter; 
• Through the Communities social media channels. 

Welsh Government communication channels 
• Shaping Wales’ Future blog;  
• PSB Bulletin; 
• Anti-racist Wales Action Plan Newsletter; 
• Climate Change Bulletin;  
• Digital Public Services Newsletter; 
• Diversity in Sustainability network; 
• European Network for Sustainable Development; 
• Foresight Europe Newsletter;  
• OECD Futures;  
• Head of Horizon Scanning.  

 
Recruitment process summary:  
 
Advertised on both Welsh Government and Cabinet Office website between 15 July 
and 15 August 2022  
 
Sift – 25 August 2022 
 
Stakeholder session with shortlisted candidates – As part of the selection process a 
stakeholder session stage for shortlisted candidates was run on 26, 27 and 29 
September. The stakeholders were drawn from the Future Generations Leadership 
Academy. Each stakeholder session lasted a total of 30 minutes and candidates 
were asked to lead a discussion on ‘’Promoting the sustainable development 
principle – how to accelerate action”.   
 
Interviews – between 17 and 20 October 2022 
 
Assessment advisory panel membership: 
 
Jane Hutt MS AS, Minister for Social Justice (Chair) 

Pack Page 20

https://www.sustainabilityjob.co.uk/advertise-with-sustainability-job/
https://sdg.careers/
https://sdg.careers/
https://www.environmentjob.co.uk/jobs


3 
 

Jane Dodds, MS AS 
Peredur Owen Griffiths, MS AS 
Sam Rowlands, MS AS 
Aaqil Ahmed, Senior Independent Panel Member 
 
 
A total of 55 applications for the new role were received. A pre sift process was 
undertaken by senior civil servants supported by the Chair of the Advisory 
Assessment Panel and 25 applications were subsequently bought to the attention of 
the Panel.  Following the sift, 10 candidates were recommended for interview. 
The Assessment Advisory Panel considered there to be 5 Appointable candidates.  
 
First Minister’s preferred candidate: Derek Walker 
 
Conflict of Interest  
 
None 
 
Political Activity  
 
Agent for the Labour Party candidates in the Butetown ward during the 2022 local 
government elections.  
 
In the past I Derek Walker has held an office role in the Butetown Labour Party 
branch although he does not hold an office position any longer.  
 
Canvassed on behalf of the Labour Party but have never taken a high profile in any 
campaign.  
 
 

Pack Page 21



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Candidate Information Pack

Future Generations Commissioner for Wales   

Closing date: 15 August 2022 16:00
Please note the closing date for this vacancy was previously advertised as 8 August 2022.

P
ack P

age 35



2

Thank you for your interest in the role of Future Generations 
Commissioner for Wales (“the Commissioner”). This document 
provides details on the role and responsibilities of the post and 
the selection process. 

To make an application please visit the Welsh Government public 
appointment website here https://gov.wales/public-appointments 

To apply for this role, click on the ‘Search for Welsh public 
appointments’, locate the vacancy, and click on ‘Apply’ at the 
bottom of the page. The first time you apply for a post, you will 
need to complete a registration form for the Welsh Government’s 
online application system. You will only need to register once, 
and you will be able to keep yourself updated on the progress 
of your application, and any other applications you make, via your 
registered account. 

Once you have registered, you will be able to access the 
application form. 

To apply you will need to submit two supporting documents:

•	  A full CV, and 

•	 A personal statement detailing your experience, how you meet 
the role description and person specification and how you could 
contribute to the role of Commissioner.

The two documents should be uploaded to the ‘Attach 
Supplementary Document(s)’ section of the online application form.

If you need us to put adjustments in place to enable you to make 
an application, please contact the Public Appointments Team: 
PublicAppointments@gov.wales

Curriculum Vitae

Please ensure your CV includes brief details of your current or 
most recent post and the dates you occupied this role. Please 
identify any past or present Ministerial appointments. 

Personal Statement  

The personal statement is your opportunity to demonstrate how 
you meet each of the criteria set out in the Person Specification in 
this pack. 

The statement should include examples that show how your 
knowledge and experience matches each of the criteria below. 
These examples should describe what your role was, and the 
approach you took to achieving a specific result.  

Please limit your personal statement to two pages of A4 using 
Arial font 12.

Making an application

P
ack P

age 36

https://gov.wales/public-appointments
mailto:PublicAppointments%40gov.wales?subject=


3

The First Minister will appointment the Future Generations Commissioner 
for Wales.

The appointment of the Future Generations Commissioner will be 
a significant appointment by Welsh Ministers and is now regulated 
under the Governance Code on Public Appointments.

The First Minister will be assisted in their decision making by 
an Advisory Assessment Panel. This panel will be made up of 
the Minister for Social Justice (the lead Minister), three members 
representing the remaining political parties of the Senedd, and a 
Senior Independent Panel Member. In undertaking their assessment 
of candidates, the role of the Panel is to decide objectively who 
meets the published selection criteria for the role, in other words, 
who is appointable to the role. The panel will be chaired by a 
Senior Civil Servant. 

There will also be a stakeholder session stage for shortlisted 
candidates which will be made up of individuals from the Future 
Generations Leadership Academy alumni. This Academy is run by the 
Commissioner’s office and brings together a diverse range of people 
from the public, private and third sector to develop their knowledge, 
practice, and leadership on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 (the ‘WFG Act’). Shortlisted candidates will be required to 
engage with Academy stakeholders during the session on a relevant 
and critical topic which will be agreed nearer the time. 

It is likely that there will be a pre-appointment hearing of the preferred 
candidate conducted by the Equality and Social Justice Committee. 
The Committee will take evidence from the preferred candidate before 
the appointment is confirmed, but after the selection process has 
taken place.

Paragraph 6 of Schedule 2 of the WFG Act details the grounds 
in which individuals may be disqualified from being appointed 
as a Commissioner. 

Selection process Disqualification

Timetable (provisional)

•	 Advert closing date: 8 August 2022

•	 Sift: late August/early September

•	 Stakeholder session and interviews: 
late September/early October 

•	 Potential pre-appointment hearing: end of October/ 
early November

•	 Appointment confirmed: November 2022

•	 Appointment start: February 2023

P
ack P

age 37

https://publicappointmentscommissioner.independent.gov.uk/regulating-appointments/governance-code/
https://senedd.wales/committee/740
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/schedule/2/crossheading/disqualification


4

The Welsh Government is encouraging a wide and diverse 
range of individuals to apply for appointments to public bodies. 
Applications are particularly welcome from all under-represented 
groups including women, people under 30 years of age, Black, 
Asian, and Minority Ethnic people, disabled people, lesbian, gay, 
bisexual and transgender people, and people from different 
socio‑economic backgrounds and circumstances. 

Guaranteed Interview Scheme
As part of our commitment to encouraging disabled people to 
apply for appointments to public bodies we will offer an interview to 
disabled people who meet the minimum requirements for the post. 

By ‘minimum criteria’ we mean that you must provide us with 
evidence in your application which demonstrates that you generally 
meet the level of competence for the role and any qualifications, 
skills or experience defined as essential. The Welsh Government has 
adopted the social model definition of disability, which recognises 
that barriers in society act to disable people who have impairments 
or health conditions or who use British Sign Language. We are 
committed to removing barriers so that all (or potential new) staff can 
perform at their best. 

The Equality Act 2010 uses the medical model definition of disability 
(“a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term 
impact on a person’s ability to carry out normal day to day activities”).

If you have an impairment or health condition, are neuro‑divergent 
or use British Sign Language and need to discuss reasonable 
adjustments for any part of this recruitment process, or if you wish to 
discuss how we will make adjustments if you were to be successful, 
please email the Public Appointments Team (PublicAppointments@
gov.wales) as soon as possible and a member of the team will 
contact you for a discussion.

Queries
For further information regarding the role of the Future Generations 
Commissioner please contact Andrew Charles (Deputy Director, 
Sustainable Futures) andrew.charles@gov.wales

If you need any further assistance in applying for this role, please 
email publicappointments@gov.wales 

For further information about Public Appointments in Wales, please 
visit www.gov.wales/publicappointments

The Welsh Government will aim to process all applications as 
quickly as possible and to treat all applicants with courtesy. If you 
have any complaints about the way your application has been 
handled, please contact publicappointments@gov.wales

Diversity Statement 

P
ack P

age 38

mailto:PublicAppointments%40gov.wales?subject=
mailto:PublicAppointments%40gov.wales?subject=
mailto:andrew.charles%40gov.wales?subject=
mailto:publicappointments%40gov.wales?subject=
http://www.gov.wales/publicappointments
mailto:publicappointments%40gov.wales?subject=


 

5

Appointment of Future Generations Commissioner for Wales

Striving for a more sustainable Wales

In Wales we are doing things differently. We have a law in Wales 
that helps us all work together to improve our environment, 
our economy, our society, and our culture.

For people, for our planet. For now, and for our future. 

This is called the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Through the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
(‘the WFG Act’), Wales has set out seven ambitious well-being 
goals which establish a long-term vision for a sustainable Wales 
and describes sustainable development as the way in which these 
goals will be achieved. This is about meeting the needs of current 
generations without compromising the ability of future generations 
to meet their own needs. 

The Welsh Government is committed to leading Wales in achieving 
these well-being goals and changing the way that Wales works 
so that sustainable development is the core principle guiding our 
actions to improve the well-being of people now and in the future. 

To assist, support, and inspire this transformation, an independent 
Future Generations Commissioner for Wales (‘the Commissioner’) 
was established to provide advice and support on sustainable 
development and be an advocate for future generations. 

We are looking for candidates who can play a leading role in 
making Wales a sustainable and globally responsible nation by 
inspiring, supporting, and convening people and organisations 
together to deliver Wales’ national well-being goals. 

The next Future Generations Commissioner for Wales will provide 
the necessary leadership to guide and enable sustainable 
development in Wales over the period 2023-2030. 

This is an exciting time to support Wales in achieving its well‑being 
goals and moving the country on to a more sustainable path.

The WFG Act continues to frame and shape how policy and 
services are delivered in Wales, and with new bodies being 
added to the WFG Act, and long-term milestones being set by the 
Welsh Government there is a renewed opportunity to engage and 
inspire the Welsh public service and other sectors so that Wales 
develops in a sustainable way and delivers for people and planet. 

The Well-being of Future Generations pages and essentials guide 
provide further background on the WFG Act. Further information 
can be found on the Future Generations Commissioner’s website.

P
ack P

age 39

https://gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales
https://gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-act-essentials-html
https://futuregenerations.wales/


6

The post
Section 17 of the WFG Act establishes the office of the 
Future Generations Commissioner, an individual appointed 
by Welsh Ministers after consultation with the Senedd. 
The Commissioner is appointed for a period of 7 years.  
The Welsh Government provides the Commissioner a budget 
of £1.509 million per annum. 

Summary of duties and powers
The general duty role of the Commissioner is to: 

•	 Promote the sustainable development principle, 

•	 Act as a guardian of the ability of future generations to meet 
their needs 

•	 Encourage public bodies to take greater account of the 
long‑term impact of their activities. 

•	 Monitor and assess the meeting of the well-being objectives 
set by the public bodies subject to the WFG Act.

In carrying out the general duty the Commissioner may

•	 Provide advice or assistance to: 
-	 A public body. 
-	� A public services board (in relation to the preparation of 

its local well-being plan). 
-	� Any other person that they believe is taking, or is seeking 

to take, action that may contribute to Wales’ well-being goals. 

•	 Encourage best practice and promote awareness amongst 
public bodies to help ensure they meet their well-being 
objectives in a manner that is consistent with the sustainable 
development principle. 

•	 Encourage public bodies to work with each other and with 
other persons if this could assist them in meeting their well-being 
objectives, sharing lessons learned and best practice.

•	 Promote awareness amongst public bodies of the need to take 
steps to meet their well-being objectives in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle.

•	 Conduct a review into the extent to which a public body 
is safeguarding the ability of future generations to meet 
their needs. 

•	 Undertake research or study into the consistency of well-being 
goals and indicators with the sustainable development principle, 
the principle itself, and anything related to impacts on economic, 
social, environmental, and cultural well-being.

•	 Provide advice to the Auditor General for Wales on the 
sustainable development principle.

The Commissioner must:

•	 Prepare and publish a Future Generations Report 12 months 
before each Senedd election containing their assessment of 
the improvements public bodies should make to achieve the 
well‑being goals. The Commissioner must consult a wide range 
of organisations and representatives in preparing the report. 

•	 Prepare and publish an Annual Report which will include a 
summary of the actions taken by the Commissioner, an analysis 
of the effectiveness of that action, a summary of complaints 
received, and a forward work programme. The Annual 
Report may include the Commissioner’s assessment of the 
improvements that public bodies should make to meet their 
well-being objectives in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle. 

•	 Have regard to the work of the Auditor General’s examinations 
when carrying out reviews and preparing a Future Generations 
Report.

P
ack P

age 40

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/section/17


7

The WFG Act does not dictate a decision a public body should 
reach in any given situation and does not confer rights onto 
individuals. The Future Generations Commissioner for Wales is 
not a regulator of individual decisions by public bodies subject to 
the WFG Act. The Commissioner does not investigate complaints 
or provide financial support to individual seeking remedy for their 
specific cases. It is not an extra layer of appeal on specific issues. 

The WFG Act is designed to stimulate discussion, support, and drive 
improvements to how things are done in Wales so that sustainable 
development is the central organising principle that guides what 
public bodies do and how public bodies work.

In discharging the role’s duties and powers, the Commissioner will:

•	 Support organisations to embed sustainable development 
as their central organising principle and facilitate joint working 
and collaboration within the Welsh public service and wider 
Welsh society to make this happen. 

•	 Be an advocate for future generations within decision making in 
Wales, stimulating a national discussion and continuous dialogue 
on the need for Wales to develop in a sustainable way through 
the active consideration of the long term. 

•	 Promote better understanding of key concepts and values 
that underpin the WFG Act, such as global environmental limits, 
intergenerational equity, good governance, and foresight. 
This includes the links between sustainable development and 
the climate and nature emergencies and tackling inequality. 
They should complement expert advice that is available on 
parts of the well-being goals. 

•	 Be focused on enabling the change in public bodies and 
supporting improvements to the culture, capability and systems 
that guide their work so that more sustainable choices and 
decisions are made. This means giving particular attention to 
how and when to support public bodies and others to maximise 
effectiveness enabling those bodies to generate the sustainable 
solutions themselves. The sharing and promotion of good 
practice will be an important part of this.

•	 Develop relationships with all sectors (including communities 
and wider civil society) to promote and encourage sustainable 
development. 

•	 Ensure the office has access to independent advice to 
shape and inform their work. This includes, but is not limited 
to, advice from the Advisory Panel. An Advisory Panel made 
up of statutory members, and other members appointed by 
Welsh Ministers will provide advice to the Commissioner on 
the exercise of the Commissioner’s  functions. 

•	 Lead and manage the office of the Future Generations 
Commissioner for Wales and ensure it continues to be a 
strong, confident, and trusted body that supports continuous 
improvement in how our public services act in accordance 
with the sustainable development principle. The body should 
demonstrate best practice in acting in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle in how it works.

P
ack P

age 41



8

•	 The Commissioner will fulfil the role of Corporate Sole and 
act as Accounting Officer and be responsible for ensuring 
the office operates effectively and to a high standard of 
probity. This will include efficient financial management of the 
Commissioner’s Office to use its resources economically and 
effectively, avoiding waste and extravagance, and plan to use 
its resources on an affordable and sustainable path, within 
agreed limits. It will be essential for the Commissioner to take 
a proportionate view about other demands or resources. 
The Commissioner will prepare  an estimate of the income 
and expenses of the Commissioner and the Commissioner’s 
staff and submit to Welsh Ministers. 

•	 Support culture change within public bodies and other 
organisations. This will include a focus on supporting bodies 
improve their arrangements for, and application of the five ways 
of working (long-term, integration, involvement, prevention, 
and collaboration).

•	 Work with partners in Wales and Welsh Government to promote 
Wales as a globally responsible nation and enable people 
and organisations from Wales to showcase and be part of the 
international sustainable development movement.  

•	 Agree with Welsh Government an updated protocol or 
Framework Agreement. 

•	 Work collaboratively with the Auditor General for Wales given 
the respective duties each has under the WFG Act. 

To find out more about the Future Generations Commissioner 
please visit https://futuregenerations.wales 

For the specific provisions concerning the Future Generations 
Commissioner please see Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 (legislation.gov.uk)

P
ack P

age 42

https://futuregenerations.wales
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents


9

The First Minister is seeking to appoint an individual 
who can demonstrate the following: 
•	 Sound knowledge and understanding of sustainable 

development, its relevance to Wales and the challenges 
and opportunities that the Well-being of Future Generation 
Act presents. 

•	 Proven leadership qualities and experience of successfully 
delivering or facilitating organisational and culture change 
in organisations.

•	 A well-developed ability to inspire confidence in a diverse range 
of stakeholders, to include skills in persuading, and positively 
influencing people at all levels, handling the media and 
wider public audiences.

•	 Experience of working with public bodies or similar organisations 
to support and encourage them to work in a more integrated 
way and/or look to the long term. 

•	 Knowledge of, and track record of commitment to equality, 
diversity and inclusion and practice in large and complex 
organisations. 

•	 Strong financial, people management and governance 
experience.

•	 Ability to express complex issues simply and articulately and 
present evidence in a clear and compelling way. 

•	 Proven knowledge of the political and public sector landscape 
in Wales. 

•	 An understanding of the relative roles of public, 
private and third sector bodies and a commitment 
to Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life.

Welsh Language 

The role of Commissioner is considered to be Welsh Desirable at 
the level specified below:

�Understanding — Can understand basic conversations about 
everyday topics

�Reading — Can read some basic words and phrases with 
understanding 

�Speaking — Can converse in simple work-related conversations

Writing — Can write basic messages on everyday topics

This means that it would be an advantage for applicants to 
understand and speak parts of a basic conversation in Welsh 
if all other essential criteria have been met.

Person Specification

P
ack P

age 43



10

ANNEX 1 – �Background on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
and Future Generations Commissioner

Sustainable Development in Wales

Since the establishment of devolution in Wales, sustainable 
development has been a guiding principle of how Wales works. 
In the Government of Wales Act 1998 and Government of Wales 
Act 2006, the duty to promote sustainable development by 
Government has shaped public policy making helping Wales lead 
the way in tackling the sustainability challenges that nations across 
the world face. 

In 2015, the introduction of the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 (“The WFG Act”) by the Welsh Government 
delivered a significant and comprehensive legislative framework 
to cement sustainable development at the heart of Government 
and public bodies serving the people of Wales and its 
environment. Through the WFG Act, Wales is the only country to 
provide a comprehensive legislative response to Agenda 2030 – 
the Sustainable Development Goals.

The WFG Act provides for a set of integrated and indivisible 
well-being goals that describe a sustainable Wales through the 
prism of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being. 

The seven national well-being goals

P
ack P

age 44

https://gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales
https://gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales
https://www.globalgoals.org/
https://www.globalgoals.org/
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-act-essentials-html#section-60676


11

It puts in place a measurement framework for these goals 
through 50 national well-being indicators and a series of 
milestones indicating the scale of change needed to achieve 
the well-being goals.  

The WFG Act also puts in place a far-reaching means of 
implementation through individual well-being duties on public 
organisations such as local authorities, health boards and national 
bodies, and collective well-being duties bringing these bodies 
together at a local level to assess and plan for improvements to 
the well-being of their areas (Public Services Boards). 

The primary aim of the WFG Act is to ensure that sustainable 
development - development that meets the needs of the present 
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 
their own needs – is the core organising principle of Government 
and public bodies. The duties under the WFG Act were therefore 
designed to influence and shape what bodies do, how they work, 
and how they communicate action. 

The intentionally broad nature of the WFG Act recognises that 
sustainable development is not just about individual decisions, 
it is about a cultural shift in the capability, skills, knowledge 
and behaviours of decision makers in Wales. It remains an 
enabling legislative framework which is designed to support 
and challenge ways of working that may be short term and 
reactive, lack coherence across different policy interventions, 
lack the collaboration needed to deliver, and disengaged from 
the people directly affected. The five ways of working that make 
up the sustainable development principle seek to address these 
weaknesses in how organisations respond to systemic and 
interconnected sustainability challenges such as climate change, 
biodiversity loss, inequality, and fair work. 

Whilst the Welsh Government assists this continuous improvement, 
it was recognised that an independent source of support was 
needed to help promote the sustainable development principle, 
share good practice, and inspire the transformation needed. 
In recognition of these challenges a new institution was established 
under the WFG Act – the Future Generations Commissioner for 
Wales. This brought greater consistency to the independent advice 
on sustainable development in Wales.

Welsh Government

The Welsh Government’s responsibilities include education, health, 
local government, transport, planning, economic development, 
social services, culture, Welsh language, environment, agriculture, 
and rural affairs. The Welsh Government makes decisions on 
matters regarding these areas, for Wales as a whole, develops and 
implements policies, and proposes Welsh laws (Senedd bills).

The responsibility for policy on sustainable development/well-being 
of future generations rests with the Welsh Government. This policy 
has largely been consolidated into the WFG Act. Welsh Ministers 
have a long-standing duty to promote sustainable development 
and therefore a good working relationship between Government 
and Commissioner in promoting sustainable development will be 
needed to provide collective leadership on this agenda. 

The Commissioner is responsible for their work programme 
independently from Government and will be developed and 
published as part of their Annual Report. Consultation with the 
Welsh Government on the work programme is encouraged so that 
there is coherence between the activities to promote sustainable 
development by both organisations.  

P
ack P

age 45

https://gov.wales/wellbeing-wales
https://gov.wales/wellbeing-wales-national-indicators
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-national-indicators-2021


12

As set out in Managing Welsh Public Money, the Welsh Government 
has put in place a Framework Agreement with the Future 
Generations Commissioner. This is prepared with, and agreed by, 
the Commissioner. This will be reviewed following appointment 
of the new Commissioner with the aim to agree an updated 
Framework Agreement within three months of the appointment. 

Senedd Cymru

The Senedd Cymru or Welsh Parliament is the democratically 
elected body that represents the interests of Wales and its people, 
makes laws for Wales, and holds Welsh Ministers to account. 
Commonly known as the Senedd, it makes laws for Wales, 
agrees Welsh taxes, and holds the Welsh Government to account. 
It has 60 elected Senedd Members and is the Welsh equivalent 
to the UK Parliament in Westminster. Elections to the Senedd are 
held every five years. The Senedd, which is based in Cardiff Bay, 
houses the parliamentary debating chamber known as the Siambr.  

The Senedd holds Welsh Ministers to account for their decisions 
and may draw on information provided by the Commissioner to 
do this. 

The Equality and Social Justice Committee is the lead Senedd 
Committee responsible for scrutiny of the Well‑being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Committee may also 
scrutinise the work and Annual Reports of the Commissioner. 
The Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee may 
take evidence from the Commissioner (as accounting officer).  

Additional Information

Barriers to the successful Implementation of the 
Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (2020) 
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28311 

Annual scrutiny of the Future Generations Commissioner:  
An update April 2022 
https://senedd.wales/media/4q2idfrj/cr-ld15086-e.pdf

  © Crown Copyright 2022 Welsh Government, WG45482, Digital ISBN 978-1-80364-554-4  
Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg hefyd / This document is also available in Welsh 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg / We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh

P
ack P

age 46

https://gov.wales/managing-welsh-public-money
https://senedd.wales/committee/740
https://senedd.wales/committee/740
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28311
https://senedd.wales/media/4q2idfrj/cr-ld15086-e.pdf


 

 

10 November 2022 

Dear Members of the Equality and Social Justice Committee, 

I am writing to you on behalf of the Gender Network, a policy forum of 50 organisations, 

activists and academics that aim to strengthen women’s rights and gender equality for all 

women and girls in Wales. 

On 5th October 2022 the Gender Network held a meeting on the impact of the cost-of-living 

crisis on women’s rights, with a particular focus on women who experience intersecting 

forms of discrimination. 

I would like to draw to your attention the following core themes that emerged in the discussion: 

• Women are at the centre of the cost-of-living crisis. This is largely due to the strong 

link between caring responsibilities and financial inequality. For instance, almost half 

(46%) of single parents live in poverty, with around 86% of these being women. 

• We urgently need investments in childcare and social care as an economically sound 
recovery stimulus that prevents more women and children from falling into poverty and 
improves conditions for those that have been worst affected. 

• Rising costs make women more vulnerable to being trapped in abusive situations. Women 

who experience intersecting discrimination, including disabled women, ethnic minority 

women, trans women, and women with no recourse to public funds, are being hit hardest 

by rising costs. 

• Rising costs are affecting support accommodation providers for survivors of VAWDASV. 

There is a need for Welsh Government to be flexible to accommodate rising bills 

because estimates have been based on previous years. 

• Many food banks are only open during working hours and are therefore not 

accessible to an increasing number of women who are experiencing in-work 

poverty. There is, therefore, a need for more streamlined information on what support is 

available for people who are struggling financially during these times. Local authorities 

should actively advertise the support available. 

• Welsh Government should use gender budgeting and progress the 

recommendations laid out in the Gender Equality Review, to ensure budgetary 

decisions responding to the cost of living crisis, and policies and laws in general, do not 

disproportionately impact women or favour men.  

It clearly emerged that women who experience intersection discrimination face additional 

challenges from the cost-of-living crisis. For example, participants highlighted the following 

challenges for ethnic minority women and disabled women: 

• Many ethnic minority women who have been working have faced tremendous difficulties 

with Universal Credit (UC), especially women over 50 and single mothers. They often 

worked part-time and UC affected income, rent, council tax reductions, and carers 

allowance without clear communication about these impacts. Many have left work and 

cancelled their carers allowance as a result.  

• Disabled homeowners struggle to keep up with mortgage payments and face the additional 

challenge that their homes may have adaptions that they need, making it hard to relocate. 

There has also been a notable increase in ableist hate speech on social media 

Pack Page 47

Agenda Item 6.1



 

 

targeting disabled people in receipt of benefits. There is a need for Welsh Government 

to intervene to challenge these misconceptions. 

• In the context of social care, there is a need for additional support for equipment 

maintenance and running costs, which is not currently provided. With rising costs, 

these could be very expensive, and many people were unable to use their equipment as 

a result. 

I would like to meet with you to explore how we can work together to ensure that the response 

to the rising costs of living leaves no woman in Wales behind. I would be grateful if your office 

could contact me at jessica@wenwales.org.uk to arrange a suitable date for a meeting. 

I look forward to your response. 

Yours sincerely,  

Jessica Laimann 

Policy and Public Affairs Manager, Women’s Equality Network (WEN) Wales 

 

Pack Page 48

mailto:jessica@wenwales.org.uk


Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Mark Drakeford AS/MS 
Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

                                   Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru 
               Correspondence.Mark.Drakefordy@gov.wales  

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Huw Irranca-Davies MS 
Chair 
Legislation, Justice and Constitution Committee 
Senedd Cymru 
 
SeneddLJC@senedd.wales  
 

10 November 2022 
 

 
Dear Huw, 
 
Inter-Institutional Relations Agreement: The Prime Minister & Heads of Devolved 
Governments Council 
 
I am writing in accordance with the inter-institutional relations agreement to notify you of the 
first meeting of the Prime Minister & Heads of Devolved Governments Council, which will 
take place this week. 
 
The Council will be chaired by Prime Minister Rishi Sunak. I will attend the meeting virtually. 
The meeting will cover the economy and the cost of living crisis.  
 
I will provide an update after the meeting. 
 
I am also copying this letter to Mick Antoniw MS, the Counsel General and Minister for the 
Constitution; the Rt Hon Elin Jones MS, the Llywydd; the Equality and social justice 
committee; the Finance Committee; and the Economy Trade and Rural Affairs Committee.  

 
Yours sincerely, 

 
 

MARK DRAKEFORD 
 

Pack Page 49

Agenda Item 6.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Mark.Drakefordy@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddLJC@senedd.wales


Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

 

 

 

 

 

16 November 2022 

Pre-appointment hearing: Future Generations Commissioner 

Dear Jenny, 

Thank you for your letter dated 1 November 2022 and the invitation to Members of the Public 

Accounts and Public Administration Committee to attend a pre-appointment hearing with the Welsh 

Government’s preferred candidate for the next Future Generations Commissioner. 

A number of our Members will be attending and the Committee Clerks are liaising regarding 

arrangements for this.  

You asked for an update on the work my Committee committed to undertake on the scrutiny of the 

Welsh Commissioners. I can confirm that the Committee will be considering its approach to this work 

at its meeting on 23 November and I will update you further after this. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Mark Isherwood MS 

Committee Chair 

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus a 
Gweinyddiaeth Gyhoeddus  
— 
Public Accounts and Public 
Administration Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCCGG@Senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddCCGG 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddPAPA@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddPAPA 
0300 200 6565 

Pack Page 50

Agenda Item 6.3



 

 

 

 

 

Pack Page 51



 

 

  

 

 

 

1 November 2022 

 

Dear Mark 

Pre-appointment hearing: Future Generations Commissioner 

We will hold a pre-appointment hearing with the Welsh Government’s preferred candidate for the 

next Future Generations Commissioner on Monday 21 November. 

Given your Committee’s remit, we would like to invite you and/or Members of your Committee to join 

us for the hearing at 13.30 (with pre-meeting at 13.00). The session will be for one hour and Members 

will be able to join in person or via Zoom. I would be grateful if the Committee Clerks could liaise 

regarding Members’ attendance. 

Separately, further to your commitment to carry out scrutiny of the Welsh Commissioners, I would 

welcome an update in relation to this work. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Jenny Rathbone MS 

Chair, Equality and Social Justice Committee   

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb  
a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 
— 
Equality and Social Justice  
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCydraddoldeb@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddCydraddoldeb  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEquality@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEquality  
0300 200 6565 

Mark Isherwood MS 

Chair, Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 

Pack Page 52



 

       

 

 

16 November 2022 

 

Dear First Minister  

Scrutiny of the financial implications of Bills 

I am writing to you given your overarching responsibility for the Welsh 
Government’s Legislative Programme. 

The Finance Committee is deeply concerned that the Welsh Government has 
moved away from the practice in the Fifth Senedd of providing a written 
response to Committee Stage 1 reports before the Stage 1 debate takes place 
and before the Senedd is required to agree a Financial Resolution.  

The Finance Committee’s role is to consider the financial implications of Bills and 
our reports often conclude that we are content with the financial information 
contained alongside Government Bills subject to a commitment from the 
Minister to provide further financial information that we have requested. As the 
motion to agree a Financial Resolution usually takes place straight after the 
Stage 1 motion has been agreed, the Welsh Government’s refusal to provide a 
formal response to our recommendations means that the Senedd is being asked 
to agree to committing resources before the Minister’s views are known. We 
consider this to be unacceptable and it undermines the scrutiny process. 

The Committee has considered the financial implications of all Bills that have 
been introduced this Senedd, excluding the consolidation Bill which is subject to 
different procedures. In our scrutiny of the first Bill introduced, the Tertiary 
Education and Research (Wales) Bill, we set out our expectation for this Senedd 
that RIAs should contain the best estimate possible for costs and benefits to 
enable us to fully scrutinise the overall financial implications of a Bill. This built on 
issues outlined in the Fifth Senedd Finance Committee’s Legacy Report which 
sets out further expectations in terms of the presentation of financial information 
that all Bills should adhere to. 

Mark Drakeford MS 
First Minister 

Pack Page 53

Agenda Item 6.4

https://senedd.wales/media/5etfxzhm/cr-ld14997-e.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s114470/Finance%20Committee%20Fifth%20Senedd%20Legacy%20Report.pdf


 

 

We have recently received the Welsh Government’s response to our 
recommendations on the Environmental Protection (Single-use Plastics 
Products) (Wales) Bill. The Committee was disappointed that in many cases the 
Minister has “agreed in principle” to provide further financial information 
requested. However, the preamble suggests that the Minister’s officials are 
assessing the feasibility of updating the original cost and, if they are able to, “any 
work will take at least six months to complete”. Even if the costs will be updated, 
the Bill is likely to have completed its legislative passage through the Senedd by 
the time the information is available.  

This is simply not good enough. It is unhelpful to receive this information after 
the Senedd has already agreed to the Financial Resolution. It also undermines 
the Committee’s efforts which, in turn, greatly increases the risk of the Senedd 
passing bad laws with uncertain financial outcomes that could place significant 
pressures on already stretched budgets. 

We therefore request that Ministers revert to previous practice and provide a 
written response to the Finance Committee’s recommendations prior to the 
Stage 1 debate and the consideration of a Financial Resolution as a matter of 
principle. This will ensure the Senedd is able to make an informed decision in 
relation to committing resources. 

I would be grateful if you would circulate this letter to your cabinet colleagues. I 
am also sending a copy to the Business Committee and Chairs of Policy 
Committees. 

Yours sincerely 

 

  

Peredur Owen Griffiths MS 
Chair of the Finance Committee 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

Pack Page 54

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s130882/FIN6-22-22%20PTN%203%20-%20The%20Environmental%20Protection%20Single-use%20Plastic%20Products%20Wales%20Bill%20Welsh%20.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s130882/FIN6-22-22%20PTN%203%20-%20The%20Environmental%20Protection%20Single-use%20Plastic%20Products%20Wales%20Bill%20Welsh%20.pdf


 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 55



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 56

Agenda Item 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 62

Agenda Item 8 By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 68

By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 72

Agenda Item 9 By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Experiences in the Criminal Justice System
	5 Pre-appointment hearing with Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
	Welsh Government briefing
	Future Generations Commissioner for Wales application - Derek Walker (redacted)
	Derek Walker  - CV (redacted)
	Personal statement
	Future Generations Commissioner for Wales - Candidates Information Pack
	Making an application
	Personal Statement  
	Selection process
	Disqualification
	Diversity Statement 
	Appointment of Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
	Person Specification
	ANNEX 1 -  Background on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and Future Generation


	6.1 Letter from the Women’s Equality Network (Wales) to the Chair regarding the cost of living crisis on Women's rights
	6.2 Letter  from the First Minister to the Chair regarding the Inter-Institutional Relations Agreement
	6.3 Correspondence between the Chair and the  Chair of the Public Accounts and Administration regarding the Pre-appointment hearing of the Future Generations Commissioner
	Letter from the Chair to the Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee – 1 November 2022

	6.4 A letter from the Finance Committee to the First Minister regarding Scrutiny of the financial implications of Bills
	7 Pre-appointment hearing: consideration of evidence  and agreeing a draft report
	8 Forward work programme
	Letter from the Chair to the Minister for Social Justice regarding Draft Budget Scrutiny 2023-24

	9 EUSS monitoring report: update
	EUSS report - 21 November 2022


